286 Proceedings of the Royal Society of Edinburgh. [Sess.

JOHNSTON, THOMAS NICOL, M.B., C.M., was appointed in 1902 First Assistant and Zoologist on the staff of the Bathymetrical Survey of Scottish Lochs, conducted under the direction of Sir John Murray and Mr Laurence Pullar from 1897–1909, and took a very large part in the general superintendence of the field work from 1902–1907. Dr Johnston was a member of the British Medical Association and a Fellow of the Royal Physical Society. He married a niece of the late Sir John Murray.

He was elected a Fellow of this Society in 1903, and communicated several papers on the work of the Loch Survey. He died at Pogbie, Humbie, on 6th October 1923.

LINDSAY, Rev. JAMES, M.A., B.Sc., D.D., F.G.S., M.R.A.S., F.R.S.L., etc., the eldest son of the late Mr John Cowan Lindsay, Headmaster of the Grammar School, Kilmarnock, was educated under his father, and at Glasgow University, where he had a distinguished career, graduating M.A. (1878), B.Sc. (1879), and B.D. (1882). In 1899 his Alma Mater conferred upon him the degree of D.D.

Dr Lindsay was University Extension Lecturer (Glasgow), 1886–87; Examiner to the Associated Theological Colleges (British and Colonial), Philosophy, 1897–99, and Honours Theology, 1899; Hugh Waddell Lecturer, Queen's University, Canada, 1899–1900; Member of International Congress of Psychology, Paris, 1900; Associate Editor of *Bibliotheca Sacra* since 1903; Member of International Congress of Philosophy, Heidelberg, 1908. He was a Corresponding Member of the Royal Academy of Sciences, Letters, and Arts, Padua.

Formerly the minister of St Andrew's Parish Church, Kilmarnock, he resigned this charge in 1908 in order to devote himself to the study of theology, philosophy, and literature, and was the author of many scholarly volumes published between 1892 and 1922.

Dr Lindsay was elected a Fellow of this Society in 1889, and died at Annick Lodge, Irvine, on 25th March 1923.

PARE, JOHN WILLIAM, M.D., L.D.S. R.C.S.(Eng.), received his training at the University and the Royal College of Surgeons, Edinburgh, Owens College, Manchester, and Guy's Hospital, London. He held the following appointments :—Honorary Dental Surgeon to the Royal Society of Musicians; Member of the Medical Faculty of the University of London; Vice-President, Anæsthetic Section, International Dental Congress, Berlin, 1909, and London, 1914; Lecturer for twenty-four years on Comparative